Mercy College

Robotic Process Automation (RPA) and Security

A Thesis

By

Fatjet Kosi

Department of Math/Computer Sciences

Submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements

for the degree of Master of Science, Cybersecurity

May 1, 2019

Accepted by the Cybersecurity Program

Date,

Dean of the Graduate School

The undersigned have examined the thesis entitled 'Robotic Process Automation (RPA) and Security' presented by Fatjet Kosi, a candidate for the degree of Master of Science in Cybersecurity and hereby certify that it is worthy of acceptance.

Date

Advisors name

Date

committee member name

ABSTRACT

Robotic Process Automation (RPA) is a software that allows a user to create a Robot (also called a Bot or a task) to automate a repetitive manual process, such as taking data from a spreadsheet and entering it into a website. The ultimate goal of RPA is to take a manual process and automate it without any human intervention. RPA is currently used by many industries, such as telecommunications, information technology, health care, insurance, financial services, human resources, and many others to reduce operational costs, improve performance, and increase work rate output.

This thesis provides three use cases for implementation of RPA technology using the Automation Anywhere application, one of several RPA tools on the market. The first use case involves creating a Bot that retrieves stock market information from Yahoo Finance, such as stock name, last price change in terms of gains or losses, and change in terms of gains or losses in percentage, as a demonstration of how to use RPA to retrieve data from a website and insert the data into a database. The second use case involves retrieving data from the monster.com website, saving the information to an Excel file, and then sending an email with the information at a scheduled increment. The third use case involves automating some website functionalities on mercy.edu.

Finally, despite the usefulness of RPA tools and their growing presence and use in various business contexts, this technology comes with some cybersecurity concerns. This thesis goes on to discuss the cybersecurity implications of RPA technology, including a risk analysis and an analysis of security best practices.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I would like to thank my thesis advisor, Dr. John Yoon, for all his support and advice during this project, throughout my masters program, and during my time as an undergraduate at Mercy College. I would also like to thank Dr. Zhixiong Chen, Dr. Narasimhaswamy Banavara, Dr. Merlinda Drini-Prelvukaj, and many other Mercy faculty members who have taught me so much and helped me develop a strong educational foundation for my career in IT.

I would also like to thank my family for supporting me as I pursued my bachelors and masters degrees. I thank my parents for being there to listen to my ideas and for always encouraging me to do my best and to try new things. I thank my mother- and father-in-law, Linda and Stephen Lauria, for warmly welcoming me into their family and for supporting me as I pursued my education and began my career. Finally, I want to thank my wife, Karen, who has always seen something special in me, even when I did not, and pushed me to be the best version of myself possible.

I would also like to thank my employer, Verizon, for encouraging me to continue my education by providing tuition assistance that enabled me to pursue my graduate degree.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter

ABSTRACT	3
ACKNOWLEDGMENTS	4
TABLE OF CONTENTS	5
LIST OF TABLES	6
LIST OF FIGURES	7
CHAPTER I: Introduction	9
CHAPTER II: History of and Applicable Uses for RPA	12
CHAPTER III: Automation Anywhere Features and Functionality	15
CHAPTER IV: Automation Samples	22
CHAPTER V: RPA Security	26
CHAPTER VI: Conclusion	30
REFERENCES	31
APPENDIX A	33
APPENDIX B	34
APPENDIX C	35
BIBLIOGRAPHY	36

LIST OF TABLES

Table	Page
Table 1: Object Cloning Mercy.Edu	17

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure	Page
Figure 1: Automation Anywhere Architecture	

CHAPTER I: Introduction

Robotic Process Automation (RPA) is a software that allows a user to create a Robot (also called a Bot or a task) to automate a repetitive manual process. RPA can be used to automate almost any type of process that follows a repetitive pattern, such as taking data from a spreadsheet and entering it into a website, to provide but one example. The ultimate goal of RPA is to take a manual process and automate it without any human intervention. In this project, I will demonstrate how to create a Bot (automate a process), some of the common uses of this technology, and its cybersecurity implications. RPA is a new and emerging technology that is currently being used and deployed by many large corporations worldwide. These companies use RPA programs to automate many of their business processes. I selected RPA as a topic for my Master's project because there is a demand for this line of work and because there is a shortage of RPA developers. RPA jobs are well paying; depending on your location, an automation job could pay more than \$100,000 per year, which makes this area an important one to consider for students.

While there are currently more than 20 RPA tools available, three tools dominate the industry. These three tools are easy to use, customizable, scalable, and are more advanced, while the rest offer far less functionality. These three leading RPA tools are Automation Anywhere, BluePrism, and UiPath. These three tools offer essentially the same features, but there have some important differences.

Three Leading RPA Tools

BluePrism: BluePrism does not come with a free trial version, but this tool has a very user-friendly design and can be used by anyone.

UiPath: UiPath offers a free community edition, which can be used to learn and to test the tool out. This tool has a similar design as BluePrism and offers roughly the same capabilities.

Automation Anywhere: Automation Anywhere comes with a 30-day free trial. This tool requires advanced programming skills but, for an advanced developer, this is the best tool because it allows the user to program and define his or her own logic.

If the user is not a strong programmer, he or she would be best served using either BluePrism or UiPath because these two tools are user-friendly and do not require a lot of programming knowledge. However, if a user enjoys programming and is strong in this area, then Automation Anywhere is the best all-around tool and it is the tool I decided to use for this project.

Automation Anywhere Architecture

Automation Anywhere architecture is made of the following elements:

Control room: The control room is a code repository manager. All of the RPA code resides in the control room. When a developer writes new code, he or she commits all of the changes in the control room.

Bot creator: A Bot creator is the Automation Anywhere application software that is used by developers to automate a process. A Bot creator has a suite of tools, which I will discuss at greater length later in this project. **Bot runner:** After the automation script has been created by a developer using a Bot creator software platform, that code can be moved into production and deployed in a Bot runner. A Bot runner is a software that is installed and resides in a virtual machine and is designed to run in unattended mode, according to a schedule specified by the user. For example, the Bot runner can be set to start processing customer invoices at 8:00 AM. The Bot wakes up and starts processing invoices the way it was programmed. A Bot runner is only used to run written code and the Bot cannot be used to edit or create a new Bot.

Virtual Machine: A virtual machine is the host environment where the Automation Bot runner lives. A virtual machine is an operating system that behaves like a regular PC. It has all of the PC applications such as a browser, file system, etc.



Automation Anywhere Architecture

Figure 1: Automation Anywhere Architecture

CHAPTER II: History of and Applicable Uses for RPA

In its early days, RPA was initially used as a tool to test the functionality of a user graphic interface application by performing screen scraping. For example, prior to code being deployed in production, a developer could create a Bot to test the functionality of each screen, gather the results of the test in a report, and finally send the report to the development team to let them know if the application has any issues. In the past few years, RPA tools have been enhanced with new capabilities that go beyond screen scraping functions (Kappagantula, 2018). Some of the new and most common capabilities include integration with databases, APIs, Excel sheets, and other file types; working with image recognition, PDF files, and PGP (Pretty Good Privacy) for encrypting and decrypting files or any information; running external scripts such as Java and VB scripts; and integration with email and XML operations and manipulations.

RPA is currently being used by many industries, such as telecommunications, information technology, health care, insurance, financial services, human resources, and many others ("4 Industries that are Killing it With Robotic Process Automation," 2016). RPA is used by these industries to reduce operational costs, improve performance, and increase work rate output. In the following paragraphs, I detail some examples of how different industries can employ RPA tools in their specific business contexts.

Human resources is one area that can benefit from RPA tools. HR professionals must routinely update customer and employee personal information. Performing this task manually can be time consuming and take time away from employees' more important work functions. Instead, HR professionals can use RPA to automate this process by creating a Bot to read new personal information from email, a file, a website, a database, or an API and then perform the update against the destination application which could be website(s), database(s), API, etc.

RPA is also useful for data validation. Most data validation is performed within a database, but there are instances in which data will need to be cross checked against a publicly available website or database repository. For example, if an employee needs to validate addresses in a contact database or Rolodex to make sure the addresses exist and are valid, he or she can use RPA to launch the U.S. Postal Service website (or call a U.S. Postal Service API, if available) and compare his or her list of addresses against USPS address validation website/API and determine which addresses are correct and which addresses are incorrect.

RPA is also an excellent tool when it comes to extracting information from many different file types such as Excel, PDF, Word, CSV, etc. For instance, if a process involves extracting information from different types of files, RPA has a suite of tools that can help to completely automate the process. One tool in particular, which can be useful for this kind of task, is Optical Character Recognition (OCR), which can be used to extract selected information from a file, such as first name, last name, phone number, address, and so on.

RPA can be used to prepare complex reports that aggregate data from multiple sources. Some reports are time consuming, but a developer could create a Bot to gather the report information from various systems and then have the report emailed out to the people who requested it. The Bot can be programmed to deliver the report daily, weekly, monthly, or at another interval, as needed.

RPA also has an email command, which can be used to send mass emails. For instance, if a user needs to send customized invoices to a large number of people, he or she can create a Bot to do that. And, besides sending emails, RPA also offers the ability to read incoming emails and then to respond or make some type of decision based on the content of the emails received.

RPA is also used widely in information technology. In IT, RPA is used to monitor servers and check for system failures. For instance, a Bot can be created to check that a server is up and running and, if there is a problem, send a text message or email to the system administrator. In this case, the system admin will be made aware of the problem and might be able to fix it without too much down time and without having to hear about the problem from multiple people. In IT, RPA is also used to test application functionality and performance, a repetitive task that can be very time consuming.

CHAPTER III: Automation Anywhere Features and Functionality

This section covers Automation Anywhere commands. A developer uses these commands to automate a process. As of 2019, Automation Anywhere has 50 commands, which can be used to program and automate a process. In this section, I will provide a summary of 23 of the most commonly used commands, including the command names and their use, as well as a brief summary for some of the most widely used commands. All of this information is available on the Automation Anywhere user reference guide website (Automation Anywhere, n.d.).

Automation Anywhere Application Commands

Read from CVS/Text Command: This command allows a user to read data from CSV or text file. Usually, this command will have to be implemented with a loop. A loop will be used to extract each record in CSV/Text file.

Excel Command: This is one of the most commonly used commands. This command is used to copy data from and to excel spreadsheets. This command is also used alongside a loop to extract records from columns and rows.

Database Command: This command can be used by almost any database type, such as Microsoft SQL Server and Oracle. This command allows the programmer to connect/disconnect to a database, run SQL query, perform Data Manipulation Activity (DML) such as insert/update/delete, and run stored procedures with or without parameters. XML Command: This command is used to process XML information created by Web Services and Cloud Computing applications. Some of the main features are Start/End XML Session, Insert Node, Delete Node/Attribute, Update Nodes, Validate XML Document, Get Node(s), Save Session Data, and Execute XPath Function.

Launch Website Command: This command is used to launch any website. The programmer can specify the URL and the website is opened in Internet Explorer or Chrome browsers. This command is usually followed by the Object Cloning command.

Object Cloning Command: Object cloning is one of the most used features of Automation Anywhere. This command is used to automate websites and desktop applications that use Flex, Silverlight, Java, and HTML technologies. The Object Cloning command can be used to automate a website or a desktop application in three different ways: by capturing website/application objects; by capturing website/application coordinates; and by image recognition.

Object Cloning Command > Capturing Website/Application Objects: The best way to automate a website or application is to do so by capturing its objects in the screen and then performing an action, such as right click, left click, double click, set text, get properties, etc. For example, if a user has launched www.mercy.edu and wants to program the Bot to log into Mercy Blackboard, he or she can achieve this by cloning the Mercy Connect hyperlink properties so that the Bot clicks on Blackboard tab hyperlink. After capturing the Mercy Blackboard hyperlink, the following properties were captured:

Property	Value
Technology	HTML
Path	7 2 1 4 1 2 1 2 1
DOMXPath	//header[@id='navbar']/div[1]/div[3]/nav/[1]/ul[2]/ul[1] /li[2]/a[1]
HTML ID	
HTML Tag	А
HTML Innertext	Blackboard
HTML HRef	https://mercy.blackboard.com/
HTML Title	Blackboard
HTML Height	38
HTML Width	108
HTML Tag Index	29
HTML Top	9
HTML Left	808

Table 1: Object Cloning Mercy.Edu

After identifying the technology as HTML, the Bot uses some of the attributes it captured to make the decision and to click on the Mercy Blackboard URL and then, eventually, capture username and password attributes and set those attributes with a user's login credentials. The most important properties captured are DOMXPath, Path, and HTML HRef. DOMXPath is a syntax for finding data elements in a website. There are two types of DOMXPath, Absolute path, and Relative path. Absolute path is more of a direct approach to finding data elements (Guru99, n.d.). In this case, the absolute path of Mercy Blackboard is *//header[@id='navbar']/div[1]/div[3]/nav/[1]/ul[2]/ul[1]/li[2]/a[1]*. In this example, we do not have a relative path, but a relative path usually starts from the

middle of the HTML DOM structure. In the table presented above, the property "Path" is generated by the Automation Anywhere Object Cloning tool. Object cloning gathers the data from the absolute DOMXpath and presents it as the Path in the following format: 7|2|1|4|1|2|1|2|1. Another important element from the table above is HTML HRef, which is the Blackboard URL (mercy.blackboard.com). Although the Blackboard URL was captured, it is possible to click to Blackboard just by using the absolute DOMXPath alone.

If the website/application that a user is trying to automate presents the data in a table format with columns and rows, then it is possible to capture the data as a table. When capturing data as a table with column and rows, the data can be saved as a CSV file. In addition, it is also possible to get a row count, column count, selecting each row or column by its index, and, if the website is read and write, it is also possible to set columns and rows to any value desired.

Object Cloning Command > Capturing website/application coordinates: In case object cloning properties such as DOMXPath are not available, it is possible to use the "Coordinate" feature to automate. Coordinate works by finding the X and Y position of an item on the screen. For example, if a user is trying to click on a button, he or she can capture the X and Y position of the button on the screen and set the action as click. When the Bot runs, it will click on the button based on its X and Y coordinate position.

Object Cloning Command > Image Recognition: The third feature of the Object Cloning Command is Image Recognition. Sometimes GUI elements of the application are not available and, if this is the case, a user can use image recognition to capture an item and then perform right click, left click, or double click.

Logfile Command: This command is used to log any errors encountered during runtime. Usually, this command is implemented along with the Error Handling Command. For example, if an error occurred, the Logfile command can capture the error and log the error in a text file or any file format specified.

Error Handling Command: This command is used to capture and handle any unexpected errors that might occur during runtime. This command allows a user to capture and suppress the error and move on to the next item. The command is also used to stop the current task if an error occurs, run a different task, log the error and take a screenshot of the error, and email the error screenshot.

Files/Folders Command: This command is used to copy, rename, delete, zip unzip, etc. files or folders.

If/Else Command: The logic of this command is same as in other programming languages and can be combined with AND/OR.

Loop Command: The concept of a loop in Automation Anywhere is same as in other programming languages. A user can use the Loop Command based on a condition, loop through each file in a folder, each row from a Excel sheet, each row from a SQL database query, each node in an XML dataset, and so on.

Keystrokes Command: This command is used to enter keystrokes, mouse clicks, and mouse moves.

Message Box Command: This command is used to display a message box. This command can hold variables and display data if the variable is assigned.

PGP Command: PGP stands for Pretty Good Privacy. This command is used to encrypt or decrypt files. This command supports symmetric and asymmetric encryptions. Symmetric encryption requires a passphrase to encrypt/decrypt while asymmetric requires a public/private key to encrypt and decrypt. PGP offers eight encryption methods: Idea, TripleDES, CAST5, Blowfish, AES128, AES192, AES256, and Twofish256. PGP also enables users to compress encrypted files using zip, bzip2, or zlib.

Run Script Command: This command is used to run scripts outside Automation Anywhere. This command works with Visual Basic or JavaScript and allows a user to pass parameters to the script and return a value back from the script.

Send Email Command: This command can be programmed to send emails to a list of recipient email addresses in a list, separated by a comma. This command also allows a user to include attachments. Prior to using this command, SMTP hostname and port number (25) must be specified.

String Operation Command: This is a very handy command for dealing with string manipulation and extracting part of a string. Some of the features of this command are Compare, Find, Join, Length, Upper and Lowercase, Replace, Reverse, Split, and Subtract.

Task Command: When automating a lengthy process, it is recommended to break the whole process into small processes so that these processes can be created as small scripts

or tasks and these small pieces of code can be reused when needed as in Object Oriented Programming. The Task Command allows a user to call a smaller task from a larger task, which enables a user to share variables and pass parameters from one task to another. This command also allows users to pause or stop the Bot completely if needed.

Variable Operation Command: This command is used to assign a value to a variable. It can be used to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, division, and other mathematical functions.

Wait Command: This command is used to force the Bot to wait and not proceed to the next command if the screen of an application takes longer than usual to load.

Delay Command: This command is used to put a delay in seconds or milliseconds when executing back-to-back commands.

Windows Action Command: This command is used to maximize, minimize, resize, close, activate, and get the active window title of a web browser's window or application.

REST Web Services Command: REST, which stands for REpresentational State Transfer, is an architectural style Application Programming Interface (API) that uses HTTP to GET, POST, PUT, and DELETE data. You can use REST Web Services command to interact with applications via API if you have permission to do so.

In addition to the commands mentioned above, Automation Anywhere allows users to create variables, lists, arrays, and random numbers. It also offers some system variables, which can be used to get the date, time, OS file path, and so on.

CHAPTER IV: Automation Samples

After familiarizing myself with Automation Anywhere commands and functionality, I decided to program three automation use cases. My first automation use case retrieves stock market information from Yahoo Finance, such as stock name, last price change in terms of gains or losses, and change in terms percentage. The purpose of this automation is to demonstrate how to use RPA to retrieve data from a website and insert the data into a database and send a text message with Nasdaq stock data.

Gathering Stock Information from Yahoo Finance

First, the bot launches Yahoo Finance URL (finance.yahoo.com) using the Launch Website command (Automation Anywhere code for this project is available in Appendix A). Second, the Bot maximizes the screen using the Window Actions command. Third, since Yahoo Finance displays its data in rows and columns, the Bot captures all of the data as a table and saves it as a CSV file. It is also possible to capture the same data using other methods, such as by column and rows or by indexes.

After the data is saved in the CSV file, the Loop command loops through each record in the CSV file. Automation Anywhere has a built-in variable called *\$Filedata Column\$*, which is used to retrieve data in a loop from each column. The programmer specifies the variable inside of the loop with a column number in parentheses. For example, retrieving data from Column 2, would be: *\$Filedata Column(2)\$*. Then, the programmer assigns the *\$Filedata Column(2)\$* value to a variable/list/array he or she creates.

I then used the Database command to connect to an Oracle database. In the Oracle database I created a table with five columns *(Name, Last Price, Change,*

Change_Percent, and Date_Added) and the values retrieved from Yahoo Finance were inserted into the database.

Finally, I used an IF statement to filter the Nasdaq stock prices and then used the Email command to send a text message to my mobile phone number. Depending on the cellular provider, it is possible to convert an email to text using these carrier-specific email addresses with a mobile phone number in place of "phonenumber" in each.

- AT&T: *phonenumber@*txt.att.net
- T-Mobile: *phonenumber@*tmomail.net
- Sprint: *phonenumber@*messaging.sprintpcs.com
- Verizon: *phonenumber@*vtext.com or phonenumber@vzwpix.com
- Virgin Mobile: *phonenumber@*vmobl.com

Collecting and Emailing Job Search Data from Monster.com

The second automation use case involves extracting data from Monster.com based on selected search criteria (Automation Anywhere code for this project is available in Appendix B). For this use case, I programmed the Bot to search for Cybersecurity jobs in Dobbs Ferry, NY and to collect the job title and URL of the monster.com job post in an Excel file and then sent an email with the results. This example shows that it is possible retrieve data from a website, create a report using an Excel file, and then send the report via email.

First, the Bot launched monster.com website and sets job title to "Cybersecurity" and location to "Dobbs Ferry" and clicked on the "Find Jobs" button. Next, the Bot created an

Excel sheet and opened the Excel sheet using the Excel command. After that, a loop was declared to loop through each job posting listed on the left panel of the screen.

In order to loop through each job listing, it is important to capture the first job using the Object Cloning command and then to manipulate the DOMXPath by increasing the section value by one. For this, I created a variable called $\$vOC_Counter\$$ and then increased the variable by one for each iteration using the Variable Operation command $(\$vOC_Counter\$ = \$vOC_Counter\$ + 1)$. During the first iteration, job listing one is captured, during second the iteration, job listing two is captured, and so on.

Then, using the Excel command, I set the Excel cells with the values such as Job title and Job URL captured from the website. When gathering data in this fashion, it is a good idea to declare an error handling in the code because there will be some instances in which the DOMXPath does not result in a job listing and therefore there will be nothing to retrieve. I have declared error handling inside the loop to catch any unexpected results and, if the DOMXPath does not match, the error handler captures the exception, suppresses the error, and logs the exception in a log file. This is done to make sure that one exception does not make the entire process fail, but instead suppresses the error and moves to the next step. Finally, after 50 iterations, meaning after capturing 50 cybersecurity job listings, the Bot saved and closed the Excel report and, using the Email command, attached the excel report to an email and sent the email to the desired recipients.

Automating Processes on Mercy.edu

My third and final use case was created around the Mercy College website at mercy.edu (Automation Anywhere code for this project is available in Appendix C). This use case

24

demonstrates that it is possible to automate some of the functionalities of the Mercy College website. For example, it would be possible to set up a process to notify Cybersecurity M.S. students that registration is open and that they may register for a list of classes. First, the Bot launched the Mercy.edu M.S. Cybersecurity degrees page (mercy.edu/degrees-programs/ms-cybersecurity) and clicked on "Curriculum." Under the "Curriculum" tab, using the Object Cloning Command, the Bot captured all of the M.S. Cybersecurity classes that were listed there and saved them in a variable as one long string. It then split the classes using the String Manipulation command. Next, the Bot launched Mercy Blackboard (mercy.blackboard.com) and logged in using existing credentials (in this instance, my student username and password). For security reasons, I encrypted my credentials in a file using the PGP command.

When the Bot runs, credentials are decrypted and assigned to vUsername and vPassword variables. After logging in, the Bot clicked on My Courses > IASP-600 class > Course Email Message > Create Message; clicked on "To" recipient; selected my name (it can select all or any name); clicked on > arrow to move my name in the recipients side; wrote an email subject; typed all of the classes retrieved under M.S. Cybersecurity curriculum in the body of the email along with a friendly introduction; and sent the email.

25

CHAPTER V: RPA Security

Since RPA is an emerging technology, identifying RPA security vulnerabilities is not an easy task. However, RPA is not different from other software technologies, which means that the same security principles apply to RPA as apply to other applications. Prior to developing Bots, it is crucial to establish a governance framework for securing Bots. As the first step, it is important for a company to develop a risk assessment strategy to evaluate all of the potential risks that are associated with RPA. The list of cybersecurity risks below is subject to change as new risks are identified (EY, 2018).

RPA Cybersecurity Risks

- 1) Abuse of privilege access
 - a) An attacker may be able to compromise an administrator account used by the Bot.
 An attacker could use the admin account to gain access to sensitive data.
 - b) Before leaving employment, a former employee could program the Bot to delete important data and interrupt the business process.
- 2) Disclosure of sensitive data
 - a) A Bot developer could mistakenly program the Bot to upload highly confidential data, such as credit card information, to a database that is accessed by the public via the web.
 - b) A bot developer could use his or her account to steal intellectual property.
- 3) Security Vulnerabilities
 - a) A security vulnerability could exist in the virtual machine environment, which is the environment where the Bot runs. Automation Anywhere Bots are deployed in

Microsoft VM Windows server 2012 R2 and if there is a security vulnerability in the virtual machine environment, the attacker could access the VM remotely and possibly access sensitive data.

- b) Bot developer could program the Bot to send/receive sensitive data without encryption. This data is vulnerable and could be exploited by an attacker.
- 4) Denial of Service
 - a) Some bad programming practices could make the Bot consume all of the virtual machine system resources and cause the virtual machine to become unresponsive and therefore unable to perform any work.
 - b) A virtual machine could be affected by unplanned system upgrades or network maintenance, which could result in loss in an outage.

RPA Security Best Practices

RPA risks can be mitigated by implementing RPA best practices (CiGen RPA, 2017). The first security best practice is segregation of duties. This involves making sure all of the RPA user community can only perform the tasks they are assigned to and that they do not have elevated access. Access to code and the control room repository should be limited only to authorized people. For example, developers should be limited to developing or modifying code and uploading new code to the central repository. An RPA administrator's role is to publish new code to production, while a tester's access is limited to running the Bot and documenting Bot behavior (Polania, 2018).

The second security best practice is digital identity and access. Most major hacks happen after elevated credentials have been compromised. To avoid this, it is important to ensure that the Bot has the least privileged role, the Bot can only perform the job that it was designed to, and that its user role cannot be used to perform other functions. In addition, it is important to use unique login accounts for each application the Bot will access so that, if a system is breached, it will only affect that particular system. Finally, it is important to never automate a process that requires the Bot to login with administrator credentials ("The Power and Potential of Robotic Process Automation and the Security Risks," 2018).

The third security best practice is data encryption. It is recommended to keep Bot credentials encrypted in a password vault and to have the Bot retrieve encrypted credentials via an API call. The Bot decrypts the credentials, passes the decrypted values to variables that can then be used to set a username and password and log into a website or database. Encryption of credentials limits the possibility of having the credentials exposed. Furthermore, if one of the Bot's tasks requires temporarily saving some data in a virtual machine (while waiting for another job to finish), it is important to ensure that the data or file is encrypted while at rest and deleted after the job is finished (WorkFusion, 2017).

Another security best practice is to develop data classification, data retention, data storage, and data location policies (Stephens, 2017). In theory, the Bot can access and store information from and to any medium (Microsoft shared drive, Google Drive, a database, etc.). Depending on the data classification, it is recommended to store information in the most secure repository available. For example, if a Bot deals with highly confidential data, the data should be stored in an encrypted database and not in a local machine. In addition, it is important to develop a data retention policy, which

28

dictates that the data produced by the Bot is disposed once it is no longer needed. Given the latest General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) regulations introduced by the European Union, it is imperative that EU customer or personal data is not copied and transported outside of its designated geographic area.

A fifth security best practice is to monitor logs and perform auditing when internal controls are broken. When a Bot is created, it is recommended that the Bot logs all of its activity. Bot activity can be used to monitor abnormal behavior and conduct an audit in case there is a problem.

Finally, it is important to scan the code for vulnerabilities prior to publishing the code in production, which is recommended for any sort of development. There are many code vulnerability check tools available, such as Dynamic Application Security Testing (DAST) and Fortify.

CHAPTER VI: Conclusion

RPA technology is an extremely useful tool that can be applied and implemented in numerous business contexts. When used correctly, these tools can enable workers to automate repetitive manual tasks, thereby saving time, money, and allowing workers to shift their efforts to more lucrative and important work. In the three use case examples provided in this thesis, RPA made it possible to capture data from a website (Yahoo Finance) and save it to a database; to aggregate information from monster.com based on specified search criteria, save the data to an Excel file, and then send an email containing the results to a specified email address; and to automate certain tasks on the mercy.edu website. Yet, even as this technology is useful and extremely versatile in its potential applications, it is not without its risks. As this thesis has explored, there are numerous potential security weaknesses in implementing this software and RPA implementation should also be accompanied by a proper and thorough risk analysis, which establishes policies and procedures that follow RPA security best practices.

REFERENCES

4 Industries that are Killing it With Robotic Process Automation. (2016, March 3). Retrieved April 28, 2019, from https://ayehu.com/4-industries-that-are-killing-itwith-robotic-process-automation/

Automation Anywhere. (n.d.). Commands. Retrieved April 30, 2019, from https://docs.automationanywhere.com/bundle/enterprise-v11.3/page/topics/aaeclient/bot-creator/commands/commands.html

- CiGen RPA. (2017, November 22). Security Risks in Robotic Process Automation (RPA): How You Can Prevent Them. Retrieved April 28, 2019, from https://medium.com/@cigen_rpa/security-risks-in-robotic-process-automationrpa-how-you-can-prevent-them-dc892728fc5a
- EY. (2018). How do you protect the robots from cyber attack?. Retrieved April 16, 2019, from https://www.ey.com/Publication/vwLUAssets/ey-how-do-you-protectrobots-from-cyber-attack/\$FILE/ey-how-do-you-protect-robots-from-cyberattack.pdf
- Guru99. (n.d.). XPath in Selenium WebDriver: Complete Tutorial. Retrieved April 16, 2019, from https://www.guru99.com/xpath-selenium.html

Kappagantula, S. (2018, December 6). Robotic Process Automation | What is Robotic Process Automation? Retrieved April 27, 2019, from https://www.edureka.co/blog/robotic-processautomation/#Emergence%20of%20RPA

Polania, A. (2018, July 19). Security Risks in Robotic Process Automation (RPA) and How to Prevent Them. Retrieved April 15, 2019, from https://www.elevateconsult.com/security-risks-in-robotic-process-automationrpa-and-how-to-prevent-them/

- The Power and Potential of Robotic Process Automation and the Security Risks. (2018, March 7). Retrieved April 16, 2019, from https://www.cyberark.com/blog/power-potential-robotic-process-automationsecurity-risks/
- Stephens, G. (2017, January 30). Information technology Three levels of data classification proposed. Retrieved April 25, 2019, from https://www.uab.edu/it/home/about-uab-it/announcements/item/819-three-levelsof-data-classification-proposed
- WorkFusion. (2017, August 23). How safe are your bots? The top 3 RPA security risks and most common mistakes enterprises make. Retrieved April 27, 2019, from https://blog.workfusion.com/how-safe-are-your-bots-the-top-3-rpa-security-risksand-most-common-mistakes-enterprises-make-eec774a87a31

APPENDIX A

Automation Anywhere code for gathering stock market information from Yahoo Finance.

Image: Decision for Section (Section Section Se	1	A	Begin Error Handling: Action: Continue; Options: Log to File, Task Status: Fail
Image: Case fields "Webgedurch Brit Automatic Avances (Website)" Image: Case fields Teacher Brit Avances (Website) Image: Case fields Teacher	2	IF	If Folder Does Not Exist ("\$AAApplicationPath\$\Automation Anywhere\My Docs\MS_Project") Then
Value Fold Value Fold Value Construction Value	3		Create Folder "\$AAApplicationPath\$\Automation Anywhere\My Docs\MS_Project"
Image: Note: The function of the second matrix the second mat	4	X	End If
 Concert Reserved the conduct of concerts the biother Concert Reserved the conduct of concerts the biother Concert Reserved the conduct of concerts the biother Fig. 1 Fig. 2 Fig. 2	5	IF	If Window Exists ("Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer") Then
Top: Clow Write: "Rev Write Mode : "two Finance : Heart Egipter" Top: The Cane ("Write State Write Mode : "two Finance : Heart Egipter") Top: The Cane ("Write State Write Mode and write its and state and "December 3." A state of the State State and a state and "December 3." A state of the State State State State State and "December 3." A state	6		Comment: Please enter the conditional commands here.
 Jour David Section Device Sectio	7	-0	Close Window: "Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer"
 Set of a set of a	8	<u>X</u>	Delay: (5 sec)
Image: The East (TAX-Spectral Cases) About the Decision Cases) The Component of Decision Cases (Component Cases) About Cases (Component Cases) (Component Cases) (Component Cases) (Component Cas	9	X	End f
 Const. Place set the confload contraint here. Const. Place set the confload contraint here. Figure 2 Add contraint of the State of the Contraint of the State of	10	IF	If File Exists ("\$AAApplicationPath\$V4utomation Anywhere\My Docs\MS_Project\stock_market.csv") Then
Deter Fire 12-Adjustment Advances Advances (Note NSE, Pager) theory (Note NSE, Pager) theor	11		Comment: Please enter the conditional commands here.
 Keif Josephanese State State	12		Delete Files "\$AAApplicationPath\$\Automation Anywhere\My Docs\MS_Project\stock_market.csv"
 I Works Dev Kield (New Work Index - Year Bayer) The Constraint of Work Index - Year Bayer of Work Index Constraint Constraint (New Year Bayer Constraint Constraint) I Works The Works The Source - Year Bayer Constraint Constraint (New Year Bayer) (New Y	13	X	End f
 Connect: Rease retries confload commodules: Connect: Rease retries confload commodules: Connect: Rease retries confload commodules: We Make They, Kinney Second Model and Second For When they are the Second For When they are the Second For When they are confload commodules: Connect: Rease retries confload commodules: Connect: Rease retries: Connect: Rease: Connect: Rease: Set Loss: Set Loss: Connect: Rease: Set Loss: Set	14	IF	If Window Does Not Exist ("Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer") Then
16 LackW Webber (Section Use) (The Next And Section Prior And Section (1) (Not to is 5 seconds : for Webber to Capen) 17 17 Note: Next And Section Use (The Next And Section Prior Prior And Section Prior And Section Prior And Sectin Prior And A	15		Comment: Please enter the conditional commands here.
10 Wate Wide Note: The Own (May Wide Note: The Theore - Herner Explore") (Wate to Seconds - For Wide Note) 11 Wate Wide Note: Charle, The Note Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore" 12 Wate Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore") 13 Wate Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore" 14 Wate Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore" 15 Wate Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore" 14 Wate Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation Anythew My Dox MS, Papertatiod, and decer "Non-mode May: Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation Anythew My Dox MS, Papertatiod, and decer "Non-mode May: Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation Anythew My Dox MS, Papertatiod, and decer "Non-mode May: Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation Anythew My Dox MS, Papertatiod, and decer "Non-mode May: Wide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation Anythew My Dox MS, Papertation Andre - Theore May Mide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation Anythew My Dox MS, Papertation Andre - Theore May Mide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation Anythew My Dox MS, Papertanotation: "NANAPARABINATION Physics May Mide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation Anythew My Dox MS, Papertanotation: "NANAPARABINATION Physics May Mide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation: "NaNAPARABINATION Physics May Mide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation: "NaNAPARABINATION Physics May Mide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation: "NaNAPARABINATION Physics May Mide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation: "NaNAPARABINATION Physics May Mide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Annotation: "NaNAPARABINATION Physics May Mide Note: Theore - Herner Explore", Theore - Herner - Herner - Herner - Herner - Herner - Herner - He	16		Launch Website "https://finance.yahoo.com/world-indices"
19 Fernices [TRL DVINU[CTRL UP]: Name Work brades - Theme Explore" with dety: Stime 19 10 Fernices [TRL DVINU[CTRL UP]: Name Work brades - Theme Explore" 10 10 Fernices [TRL DVINU[CTRL UP]: Name Work brades - Theme Explore" 10 10 Fernices [TRL DVINU[CTRL UP]: Name Work brades - Theme Explore" 11 10 Connect: These starts & condexis connects - theme Explore" 12 10 Depr: (Tase) 13 10 Depr: (Tase) 14 Open Concy Gut Tade Decort Table - "mo and on a "SAAppetator Path Assention Anywhere Work Docs MS_Propertition", segnito vasals "% Table-Foust", Source: Winder: Ray Table Open Concy Gut Tade Decort Table-Foust Table - Theme Founder: "Any Table-Foust", Source: Winder: Ray Table Open Concy Gut Tade Decort Table-Foust Table - Theme Table - Theme Founder: "Any Table-Foust", Source: Winder: Ray Table - Theme Tab	17	O	Wait for Window to Open ("Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer") (Wait up to 5 seconds - For Window to Open)
9 If Worker East Filter State Index Character Items Eggint" 9 0 Control Table state in control and manufactor items Eggint" 9 0 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 9 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 9 0 <td>18</td> <td></td> <td>Keystrokes: [CTRL DOWN]0[CTRL UP] in "Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer" with delay: 50 ms</td>	18		Keystrokes: [CTRL DOWN]0[CTRL UP] in "Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer" with delay: 50 ms
2 Connect: Research the condition command here. 3 Connect: Connect of the Con	19	IF	If Window Exists ("Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer") Then
1 Names Window: "May Windo Holes: "Name Prance - Heart Explore" 2 End / 3 End / 4 End / 4 End / 5 <	20		Comment: Please enter the conditional commands here.
2 Ford # 2 Dec() flow) 2 Dec() flow) 3 Dec() flow) 3 Dec() flow) 3 Dec() flow) Dec() flow) </td <td>21</td> <td>-0</td> <td>Maximize Window: "Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer"</td>	21	-0	Maximize Window: "Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer"
 Berg (10 sc) Description: Desc	22	X	End if
 Copie Clamp, Ger Table Fore Table "The "in our and one at "AbAppleatorhald Automation Anywhere Wp Copied 300, Speed tools, maked: "You Share at the "in marked Map Void Index - Table Table "The Work Map Table Table Work Map Table Work Map	23	<u>স</u>	Delay: (10 sec)
21 Opec Clamp Ger Tad Row of Tabe "Two window May Wold Indices - Yahoo Fance - Yahoo Explore Mays to watable "Sy TableRows Tile Clamp Ger Tad Clamp Tabe Tad Clamp Ger Tad Clamp Tabe Tabe Tabe Tabe Tabe Tabe Tabe Tabe	24	- 44	Object Cloning: Get Table(Extract Table) "" to cav and store at "\$AAApplicationPath\$'Automation Anywhere'My Docs\MS_Project\stock_market.cav" from window 'Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer', Source: Window; Play Type: Object
26 Object Coming Carl Table Cultures of Table "Time window Mayer Wold Index - Tables France - Internet Explore", Assign to vaniable "50 TableColumns?" Sources Window: Pay Type Object 27 28 Vector Coming Carl Table Columns (TableColumns)? 28 Vector Coming Carl Table Columns (TableColumns)? 29 Delay (Table) 20 PCP: Decryit Free varies Source: "SAVApplication" Hart Value May Dock MS_Project encrypt Let "The Table Columns (Table Columns)? 20 PCP: Decryit Free varies Source: "SAVApplication" Hart Value May Dock MS_Project encrypt Let "The Table Columns (Table Columns)? 21 Free Value Provide May Columns (Table Columns)? 22 Sat Loop Table own in SCV/Tee Hart Season: Default 23 Carl Sources Season (Table Column) (Table Value Provide Walue Provide Wal	25	- 44	Object Cloning: Get Total Rows of Table "" from window "Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer'; Assign to variable "\$vTableRows\$"; Source: Window; Play Type:Object
21 Status Vidab Constant, Sträderbors 11 be TubleRows 22 Status Design: Tuble rows, TubleRows Tuble counts, Sträderbors Tuble	26	- 44	Object Cloning: Get Total Columns of Table "" from window 'Major World Indices - Yahoo Finance - Internet Explorer'; Assign to variable "\$vTableColumns\$"; Source: Window; Play Type.Object
31 Message Bat: "Table rows 4: Nations 3: Falle Columns" 32 PGP: Decry File using Faschrase; Source: "SAVApplication Anywhere Wg Docs MS_Project encrypt at "	27	5	Variable Operation: \$vTableRows\$-1 To \$vTableRows\$
3 Desr, Cacol 7* PCP Desp: Flex unip Parsprase. Source: "BAAApplication Path's Automation Mywhere My Docs MS_Project uncrypt tat" 11 Read From Tark Fle: "BAAApplication Path's Automation Mywhere My Docs MS_Project uncrypt tat" 2 Sate Loop "Each mon a CSV/Tark Ef Section Default" 31 11 Floorers Equal To (-) 3" Then 32 12 # Source E Equal To (-) 3" Then 33 12 # Source E Equal To (-) 3" Then 34 14 # Source E Equal To (-) 3" Then 35 15 Berl # Source E Equal To (-) 3" Then 35 16 # Source E Equal To (-) 3" Then 36 Variable Operation: Sifedata Column(1) To \$VDB_Parswords 37 N End F 38 12 # Source E Equal To (-) 3" Then 39 14 # Source E Equal To (-) 3" Then 30 16 # Source E Equal To (-) 3" Then 30 16 # Source E Equa To (-) 3" Then 31 16 # Source E Equa To (-) 3" Then 31 16 # Source E Equa To (-) 3" Then 31 16 # Source E Equa To (-) 4" Then 31 16 # Source E Equa To (-) 4" Then 32 16 # Source E Equa To (-) 4" End 33 16 # Source E	28		Message Box: "Table rows: \$vTableRows\$Table columns: \$vTableColumns\$"
30 PCP. Descript File using Paterbase. Source: "AdAppEndixMonitor Patry Mater My Docs MS_Project Incorpt Late". Destination: "SAAAppEndixMonitor Patry Mater My Docs MS_Project Incorpt Late". Destination: "SAAAppEndixMonitor Patry Mater My Docs MS_Project Incorpt Late". Destination: "SAAAppEndixMonitor Patry Mater My Docs MS_Project Incorpt Lat". 31 TP Rescript Files using Patry Files Source: "No" Sesson: Default". 32 Sat Loop Technic Info (1) "Thm Thm 34 Ef Sourcet Seguin (1) (1) Th SVDB_PasswordS 35 Te off File 36 Verable Operation: SFledda Colum(1) IS 15 xDB_PasswordS 36 Verable Operation: SFledda Colum(1) IS 15 xDB_PasswordS 37 TS Sat Loop Technics Filedda Colum(1) IS 15 xDB_PasswordS 38 Verable Operation: SFledda Colum(1) IS 15 xDB_PasswordS 39 TS Sat Loop Technics Filedda Colum(1) IS 15 xDB_PasswordS 30 TS Sat Loop Technics Filedda Colum(1) IS 15 xDB_PasswordS 30 TS Sat Loop Technics Filedda Colum(1) IS 15 xDB_PasswordS 31 TS Sat Loop Technics Filedda Colum(1) IS 15 xDB_PasswordS 32 TS Sat Loop Technics Filedda Colum(1) IS 15 xDB_PasswordS 33 TS Field Loop 34 TS Sat Loop Techni	29	<u>X</u>	Delay: (2 sec)
11 Read From Ter He: "\$AAApplacation#shift Automation #htty/here Mb Doci MS_Project encrypt tat" Delimiter: New Line' Header: No Tim Leading Space: "No" Term Trailing Space: "No" Session: Default" 12 F SCureter Span To (+) "Then 13 III F SCureter Span To (+) "Then 14 Vandeb Operation: Sifekata Calumn(1)S To VDB_UserameS 15 Exet Span To (+) "Then 16 Vandeb Operation: Sifekata Calumn(1)S To VDB_ProvedS 17 No 18 Vandeb Operation: Sifekata Calumn(1)S To SvDB_ProvedS 17 Sect Span To (+) "Then 18 Vandeb Operation: Sifekata Calumn(1)S To SvDB_ProvedS 18 Vandeb Operation: Sifekata Calumn(1)S To SvDB_ProvedS 19 Delete File: "SAAApplaciation#AttinAutomation Anywhere My Docs MS_Project encrypt Latt 19 Vandeb Operation: Sifekata Calumn(1)S To SvDB_Proved encrypt Latt 10 File Concrect Signa To (+) "Then 10 Vandeb Operation: Sifekata Calumn(1)S To SvDB_Proved encrypt Latt 10 Find Loop 10	30	۳0	PGP: Decrypt Files using Passphrase; Source: "\$AAApplicationPath\$Vautomation Anywhere My DocsVMS_Project\encrypt.txt.enc"; Destination: "\$AAApplicationPath\$VAutomation Anywhere My DocsVMS_Project\encrypt.txt"
33 Stat Loop Tabch win a CSV/Text field Selection Data** 44 5 Valable Operation: Sifedata Column(1)S To VOB_PreservodS 45 End I Sourcet Space (1) of "Then 46 Valable Operation: Sifedata Column(1)S To VOB_PreservodS 47 Stat Loop Tabch win in CSV/Text field of Seeson: Data** 48 Fourted Space (1) of "Then 49 Stat Loop Tabch win in CSV/Text field of Seeson: Data** 41 F Sourcet Space (1) of (1) Then 42 Stat Loop Tabch win in CSV/Text field of Seeson: Data** 43 V 44 F Sourcet Space (1) of (1) Then 45 Valable Operation: Sifedata Column(1) To SvDB_ParewordS 45 End I foo 46 Valable Operation: Sifedata Column(1) To SvDB_ParewordS 47 End Foor Street Space (1) Operation: Sifedata Column(1) To SvDB_ParewordS 48 End I foor CSV file: "SAAdpolationPathSvAconation Anywhere Wy Dock MS_Project Vancytat" 49 Deleter File: "SAAdpolationPathSvAconation Anywhere Wy Dock MS_Project Vancytat" 41 End Loop Table Session tock market_env file* 42 Connect File Filedata Column(1)S To SvDB ParewordS Session tock market_env file* 43 Connect	31		Read From Text File: "\$AAApplicationPath\$vAutomation Anywhere\My Docs\MS_Project\encrypt.txt" Delimiter: NewLine' Header: No' Trim Leading Space: "No" Trim Trailing Space: "No" Session: Default'
31 If \$Counter\$ Equal To (-) "3" Then 32 Exet \$Factors Equal To (-) "4" Then 33 Exet \$Factors Equal To (-) "4" Then 34 Exet \$Factors Equal To (-) "4" Then 35 Factors Equal To (-) "4" Then 35 Set Loo 34 Factors Equal To (-) "4" Then 35 Set Loo 36 Vertable Operation: Sifedia Column() IS To SUB_Passord S 37 Set Loo 36 Vertable Operation: Sifedia Column() IS To SUB_Passord S 37 Set Loo 38 Set Loo 39 Exet \$Scorter Equa To (-) "4" Then 30 Fact f 30 Fact f 30 Vertable Operation: Sifedia Column() Store VB_Passord S 31 Vertable Operation: Sifedia Column() Store VB_Passord S 31 Vertable Operation: Sifedia Column() Store VB_Passord S 32 Exet Factors CST (Fire SAAdoplication Path's Automation Paywhere My Docs MS_Project "anopyt And" 33 Connect: Vertile Sifedia Column() Store Source Set Vertile Source Set Source Set Set Source Set Set Source Set Source Set Set Source Set Set Source Set Source Set Source Set Source Set Source Set Source Set S	32	- 3	Start Loop "Each row in a CSV/Text file of Session: Default"
34 Start Loop Technown a CSV/Tech Technown a CSV/Techno Steledata Column(1)8 To 5V0B_Passwod5 35 Start Loop Technown a CSV/Technown a C	33	IF	if \$Counter\$ Equal To (+) "3" Then
31 Bite # Sources Equal To (*) ** Then 32 C For I 33 C For I 34 C Stat Loop TEch tow in a CSV/Tech file of Session. Default* 35 C For I Aco 35 C Stat Loop TEch tow in a CSV/Tech file of Session. Default* 35 C Stat Loop TEch tow in a CSV/Tech file of Session. Default* 36 C Stat Loop TEch tow in a CSV/Tech file of Session. Default* 37 Notable Operation. Sifedata Column(1)S To 5vDB_UsemaneS End I 38 C Bell # Sources Equal To (e) *3* Then 39 C Bell # Sources Tequation. Sifedata Column(1)S To 5vDB_UsemaneS 30 V End I 30 C End I 311 Read From CSV file: "SuAdpolicationPath's Automation Anywhere M/D Docs/MS_Project-encypt.td." 312 Deleter Reis "SuAdpolicationPath's Automation Anywhere M/D Docs/MS_Project-encypt.td." 313 C End I 314 C Connect ': Theory Suscerd's PDB_T Exercency File' 314 Connect ': New Suscerd's PDB_T Exercency File' 315 Sat Loop Tech tow in a CSV/Tech If ed Session: stock_market_cow_file' </td <td>34</td> <td>5</td> <td>Variable Operation: SFiledata Column(1)\$ To \$vDB_Username\$</td>	34	5	Variable Operation: SFiledata Column(1)\$ To \$vDB_Username\$
36 Context 37 End I 38 Set Loop: 39 Set Loop: 31 Set Loop: 31 Set Loop: 32 Set Loop: 33 Set Loop: 34 Set Loop: 35 If SCurterS Equal To (+): 3" Then 36 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(1)S To SVDB_UsemaneS 36 Elsel \$ \$ Sourches Equal To (+): 3" Then 37 End I 38 Set Loop: 39 End \$ \$ 30 End f 30 Find f 31 Set Find Source: Shedata Column(1)S To SVDB_PasswordS, Project Vancok_market.cov Delmter: "Comma" Header: "Yee" Trim Leading Space: "Yee" Trim Trailing Space: "Yee" Session: Mock_market_cov fie' 310 Set Incop "Each row in a CSVText field Source: Shedata Column(1)S To SvDB.PasswordS, Periat Security Info=True, User ID=SvDB_Usemanes, Data Source=X" Session: RPA-DB' 32 Set Incop "Each row in a CSVText field Source: Shedata Column(1)S To SvDB.PasswordS, Periat Security Info=True, User ID=SvDB_Usemanes, Data Source=X" Session: RPA-DB' 33 Set Incop "Each row in a CSVText field Source: Shedata Column(1)S To SvLast Price Column(1)S To SvLast Price Source: Shedata Columon(1)S To SvLast Price Source: Shedata Colu	35	EI	Ese If \$Counter\$ Equal To (=) "4" Then
31 N End IP 32 N End IP 33 N End IP 34 S Fol Loop 35 S Stat Loop "Each row in a CSV/Text Rei of Senson: Defaut" 35 IP IP Sources Senson To (i) "3". Then 36 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(1)S To SvDB_Llsemanes S 37 N End I 38 V End I 39 IP Delete Files "SAAApplicationPathS'Automation Anywhere My Docs MS_Project Vance, market csv" Delemter: "Comma" Header: "Yes" Tim Leading Space: "Yes" Tim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'stock_market_csv_file' 39 IP Delete Files "SAAApplicationPathS'Automation Anywhere My Docs MS_Project Vance, market_csv_Delemter: "Comma" Header: "Yes" Tim Leading Space: "Yes" Tim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'stock_market_csv_file' 40 IP Read Finor SX Hite: 'SAAApplicationPathS'Automation Anywhere My Docs MS_Project Vance, market_csv_Tile' 41 IP Connect : Tim Sessions: State Scalable Column(2) To Sy Names S 42 Stat Loop "Each Column Not State Scalable Column	36	5	Variable Operation: \$Filedata Column(1)\$ To \$vDB_Password\$
3* No End Loop 38 * No End Loop 39 * * Stat Loop Teach row in a CSV/Text file of Session: Default* 39 * * Stat Loop Teach row in a CSV/Text file of Session: Default* 39 * * End if Secures' Equal To (*) ** Then 40 * * Stat Loop Teach row in a CSV/Text file of Session: Default* 50 * * End if Secures' Equal To (*) ** Then 51 * * End if Coop 52 * * End if Secures' Equal To (*) ** Then 53 * * End Loop 54 * * End Loop 55 * * End Loop 56 * * End Loop 57 * * End Loop 58 * * End Loop 59 * * End Loop 50 * * End Loop 50 * * End Loop 51 ** Sect Loop Towider-MSDASQL Thessond's Periat Secure My Info-True; User ID+\$vDB_Ubemane\$, Data Source+X* Session: RPADB* 52 ** Set Loop Teach row in a CSV/Text file of Session: stock_market_cav_file 52 ** Comment: Use Sifeldat Column(\$) To \$vDames 5 54 ** Comment: Use Sifeldat Column(\$) To \$vLamPice Secure Set 55 ** Vasiablo Operation: Sifeldat Column(\$) To \$vChangeS	37	X	End if
32 Start Loop "Each row in a CSV/Text file of Session: Default" 43 If Source's Equal To (a) "4" Then 44 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(1)'s To \$vDB_Usemanes S 55 If Source's Equal To (a) "4" Then 56 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(1)'s To \$vDB_Password's 57 End If 58 End If 58 Find Loop 58 End If 58 Find Cornect to "Provider-MSDASQL1: Password's/DB_Password	38	~	End Loop
31 If SCourted Equal To (+) '3" Then Variable Operation: Sifekida Column(1)S To \$vDB_UbernameS 31 End f 32 End f 33 Warable Operation: Sifekida Column(1)S To \$vDB_PasswordS 34 End f 35 End f 36 Variable Operation: Sifekida Column(1)S To \$vDB_PasswordS 37 N 38 Variable Operation: Sifekida Column(1)S To \$vDB_PasswordS / Project variable / Project variable / Project variable / Project variable / PasswordS / Project variable / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / PasswordS / Project variable / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / PasswordS / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / PrasswordS / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / PasswordS / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / PasswordS / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / PrasswordS / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / PasswordS / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / PasswordS / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / Project / Provider-MISDASQL / Provider	32	- 33	Start Loop "Each row in a CSV/Text file of Session: Default"
34 S Variable Operation: SFledata Column(1)S To SVDB_UsemanneS 36 S End I So 37 N End I So 38 S End I So 39 N End I So 30 N End I So 30 N End I So 31 N End I So 32 N End I So 33 N End I So 34 Read From CSV Inter StabuT Go Value Mathon Anywhere My Docs MS_Project vancyst At " 34 Connect to "Provider-MSDASQL 1.Passwords?PuB_Passwords?PuB_Usemanes.Data Source -X" Session: "RPA:DB" 34 Connect to "Siledata Column(1)S To SvNames 35 Stat Loop "Each row in a CSV/Test file of Session: stock_market_cov_file" 46 S Variable Operation: Siledata Column(1)S To SvNames 47 S Variable Operation: Siledata Column(1)S To SvNames 48 Variable Operation: Siledata Column(1)S To SvNames SvNames 49 End End End Svanable Operation: Siledata	33	IF	If \$Counter\$ Equal To (e) "3" Then
35 Else if \$Counter\$ Equal To (a) "4". Then 36 Variable Operation: \$Fieldata Column(1)\$ To \$vDB_Password\$ 37 End f 38 S 39 End if 39 End if 30 Seaf Fom CSV file: "\$AAApplicationPath\$VAtomation Anywhere My Docs/MS_Project Vatock_market_csv" Delimiter: "Comma" Header: "Yes" Trim Leading Space: "Yes" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'ktock_market_csv.file' 40 End if Commet: 0: File Stack Column(2)\$ To \$vDB_Password\$Periat Security File" (Security File" Trim Leading Space: "Yes" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'ktock_market_csv.file' 41 Commet: Une SFiledata Column(2)\$ To \$vDB_Password\$Periat Security File" (Security File" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'ktock_market_csv.file' 42 Sest Loop "Each file" Security File" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'ktock_market_csv.file' 43 Commet: Une SFiledata Column(2)\$ To \$vDang Security File" (Security File" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'ktock_market_csv.file' 44 Sest Loop "Each file" Security File" Security File" Security File" Security File" Security Sec	34	S.	Variable Operation: \$Filedata Column(1)\$ To \$vDB_Usemame\$
36 S Variable Operation: \$Filedata Column(1)\$ To \$vDB_Password\$ 37 N End Ig 38 S End Ig 39 ■ Delete Files "\$AAApplicationPath\$vAtomation Anywhere My Doos MS_Project vatock_market_csv_Telemiter: "Comma" Header: "Yes" Trim Leading Space: "Yes" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'atock_market_csv_file' 41 ■ Connect to "Provider-MSDASQL 1:Password\$yDB_Password\$yBerait Security Info-True;User ID-\$vDB_Usemane\$;Data Source+X" Session: 'RPA-DB' 42 Connect to "Provider-MSDASQL 1:Password\$yDB_Password\$yBerait Security Info-True;User ID-\$vDB_Usemane\$;Data Source+X" Session: 'RPA-DB' 43 ■ Comment: Use Sfieldata Column(2)\$ To SvName\$ 44 ■ Variable Operation: Sfieldat Column(2)\$ To SvName\$ 45 Variable Operation: Sfieldat Column(2)\$ To SvName\$ 46 S Variable Operation: Sfieldat Column(2)\$ To SvName\$ 47 S Variable Operation: Sfieldat Column(2)\$ To SvName\$ 48 S Variable Operation: Sfieldat Column(2)\$ To SvName\$ 49 ■ Message Box: "SvName\$ Staul To (c) "Nadage" Then 40 S Sv1ame\$ Epsal To (c) "Nadage" Then 41 ■ Comment: Rease effect the conditional commands here. 42 S	35	EI	Else if sCounter\$ Equal To (+) "4" Then
37 N End if 38 S Find Lop 38 S Find Lop 39 Delete Files "SAAApplicationPathS'Automation Anywhere My Docs'MS_Project Vack_market.csv" Delimiter: "Comma" Header: "Yes" Trim Leading Space: "Yes" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'stock_market_csv_file' 40 Eine Read From CSV file: "SAAApplicationPathS'Automation Anywhere My Docs'MS_Project Vack_market_csv_file' 41 Connect to "Provider-MSDASQL1;Password's/DB_Password's/Perinit Security Info-True;User ID-\$vDB_Usemane\$,Data Source+X" Session: 'RPA-DB' 42 Cstat Lop: "Each row in a CSV/Text file of Session: istock_market_csv_file' 43 Connect: Use SFledata Column(3)s To SvLastPrices 44 S Variable Operation: SFledata Column(3)s To SvLastPrices 45 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(3)s To SvLastPrices 46 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(3)s To SvLastPrices 47 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(3)s To SvLastPrices 48 Execute SQL Statemet: INSERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME_LLST_PRICE, CHANGE_PERCENT, DATE_ADDED/VALUES(\$vName\$', 'svLastPrice\$', 'svChange\$', 'svCh	36	\$	Variable Operation: \$Filedata Column(1)\$ To \$vDB_Password\$
 Solution End Loop Delete Files "SAApplicationPathsVatomation Anywhere/My Docs/MS_Project Vencypt td." Read From CSV file: "SAApplicationPathsVatomation Anywhere/My Docs/MS_Project Vencypt td." Read From CSV file: "SAApplicationPathsVatomation Anywhere/My Docs/MS_Project Vencypt td." Connect to "Provider-MSDASQL 1: Password SyDB; Project Vencypt td." Sat Loop Fach row in a CSV-Feet file of Session Stephent Socution MonthsVatomation Anywhere/My Docs/MS_Project Vencypt td." Connect: Use SFieldata Column(S) For Sock_market_cov_file' Comment: Use SFieldata Column(S) To SvNameS Vasable Operation: SFieldata Column(S) To SvChangeS Vasable Operation: SFieldata Column(S) To SvChangeS Vasable Operation: SFieldata Column(S) To SvChangeS Execute SQL Statement: NISERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME, LAST_PRICE, CHANGE, CHANGE, PERCENT, DATE_ADDED)/VALUES(svName\$', "svChangeS', "svChangeS	37	X	End If
39 Delete Files "\$AAApplicationPath\$VAtomation Anywhere My Docs MS_Project vercept tat" 40 Head Fines "\$AAApplicationPath\$VAtomation Anywhere My Docs MS_Project vercept tat" 41 Read From CSV file: "\$AAApplicationPath\$VAtomation Anywhere My Docs MS_Project vercept Trigger Vers" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'stock_market_cov_file' 42 Connect to "Provider-MSDASOL. TriggerwordsPerinet Security Hos-True.User ID-\$vDB_Usemane\$,Data Source+X" Session: 'RPA:DB' 43 Connect: Use Sfledata Column(\$) To SvLatPrices 44 S Variable Operation: Sfledata Column(\$) To SvLatPrices 45 Variable Operation: Sfledata Column(\$) To SvLatPrices 46 Variable Operation: Sfledata Column(\$) To SvLatPrices 47 Message Box: "SvName\$ SvLatPrices, CompreshChanges Procents" 48 Message Box: "SvLatPrices, CompreshChanges, Changes, Changes, Changes, Changes, Changes, SvLatPrice, CHANGE_CHANGE_CENT, DATE_ADDED)VALUES(\$vName\$', "vLastPrices', "svChanges', "	38	- S	End Loop
9 If SNAMpSicationPathSNutationAnywhereWD_Docs/MS_Project/atock_market_csv"/Beimter: "Comma" Header: "Yes" Trim Leading Space: "Yes" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes" Session: 'atock_market_csv_file' 1 If Connect to "Provider-MSDASQL 1: Password's/DE_Prasword's/DE Prasword's/DE intervention True: User ID-\$VDE_Usemane's.Data Source-X" Session: 'RPA-DB' 2 Stat Lop "Each file" of Session into Connect. Sup Sprint Security infor True: User ID-\$VDE_Usemane's.Data Source-X" Session: 'RPA-DB' 3 Connect: Use SFledata Column(2)s To SvName's 44 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(2)s To SvName's 45 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(2)s To SvName's 46 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(2)s To SvName's 47 Watable Operation: SFledata Column(2)s To SvName's 48 Variable Operation: SFledata Column(2)s To SvName's 49 Execute SQL Statement: 'NSERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME, LAST_PRICE, CHANGE, PERCENT, DATE_ADDED)VALUES(svName's, 'svLastPrice's, 'svChange's, 'sv	39		Delete Files "SAAApplicationPath\$3/atomation Anywhere\My Docs\MS_Project\encrypt tel"
Image: Connect to "Provide=/MSDASL: Passwords/Points Security Info The User ID-\$VDB_Usermane\$.Data Source-X" Session: RPA-DB' Image: Connect to "Provide=/MSDASL: Passwords/Points Security Info The User ID-\$VDB_Usermane\$.Data Source-X" Session: RPA-DB' Image: Connect to "Provide=/MSDASL: Column(3) For sech record in File. Connect: Use SFieldata Column(3) For sech record in File. Image: Connect to "Provide=/MSDASL: SFieldata Column(3) For sech record in File. Variable Operation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: NameS Image: State Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices State Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices Image: State Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices StatE Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices Image: State Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices StatE Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices Image: State Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices StatE Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices Image: State Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices Connect: StatPices Image: StatE Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices Connect: StatPices Image: StatE Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices StatE Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices Image: StatE Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices StatE Doperation: SFieldata Column(3) For Sv: StatPices Image: StatPices	40		Read from CSV file: "SAAApplication PathSVA transition Anywhere/Wy Docs/WS Project/stock, market csy." Delimiter: "Comma" Header: "Yes" Trim Leading Space: "Yes" Trim Trailing Space: "Yes
Content of Trobale-Inductor, Treatment of the Session: tack_market_ovs_file* Content us SFledata Column(S) To SvLastPrices Comment: Use SFledata Column(S) To SvLastPrices Variable Operation: SFledata Column(S) To SvLastPrices Sector SVLastPrices Se	41		Consect to "Provider-MSDASDI 1-Deseuverle-Sub Parent Security Information (Institute Institute I
4 Comment: Use Shields Column (2) Strike of seeden tack_parage 4 Comment: Use Shields Column (2) To SvName 5 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 4 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Seeden tack_parage 5 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Loop Each How Ta Strike of Loop Each How Ta Strike of Loop Each How Take Feeden tack for Seeden tack_parage 6 Sint Loop Each How Ta Strike of Loop Each How Take How T	42	- 5	
43 •••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	42	-	State Dop Edd How in a Cosy fex file of dession, sock market_osy line
44 S Vanable Operation: SHedda Column(2) is o SvhameS 45 S Vanable Operation: SHedda Column(2) is o SvhameS 46 S Vanable Operation: SHedda Column(2) is o SvhameS 47 S Vanable Operation: SHedda Column(2) is o SvhameS 48 S Vanable Operation: SHedda Column(2) is o SvhameS 49 S Vanable Operation: SHedda Column(2) is o SvhameS, 2. Ohange in Percent S 49 S Message Box: "SvNameS SvhameS, Change S, 2. Ohange in Percent S 49 Execute SQL Statement: INSERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME, LAST_PRICE, CHANGE, CHANGE, PERCENT, DATE_ADDED)//ALUES(\$vNameS', "SvLastPriceS', "svChangeS', "svChangeInPercent S', SYSDATE)." Session: "RPA-DB" 51 Execute SQL Statement: INSERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME, LAST_PRICE, CHANGE, PERCENT, DATE_ADDED)//ALUES(\$vNameS', "svLastPriceS', "svChangeS', "svChangeInPercent S', SYSDATE)." Session: "RPA-DB" 51 Comment: Please enter the conditional commands here. 52 Send End I 54 * 54 * 56 Bidoonnect from database Session: "RPA-DB" 57 Bidoonnect from database Session: "RPA-DB" 58 Bidoennect from database Session: "RPA-DB" 57 Bidoennect from database Session: "RPA-DB" 5	40		Comment: Use sheedaa columna vanabie for each record in hile.
43 End Error Handling 44 End Error Handling	44	2	Vanable Operation: SFiedata Column(2)S 10 SVNameS
46 S Variable Operation: Sifedata Column(\$) To SvChangesh Percent \$ 47 S Variable Operation: Sifedata Column(\$) To SvChangesh Percent \$ 48 Message Box: "SvName\$: SvLatPrice\$, Ohange hPercent \$ 48 Execute SQL Statemet: NISERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME_LAST_PRICE, CHANGE_CHANGE_PERCENT, DATE_ADDED)VALUES(\$vName\$', "\$vLastPrice\$', "\$vChanges", "\$vChangehPercent\$', SYSDATE)," Session: "RPADB' 49 Execute SQL Statemet: "INSERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME_LAST_PRICE, CHANGE_PERCENT, DATE_ADDED)VALUES(\$vName\$', "\$vLastPrice\$', "\$vChanges", "	45		Variable Operation: \$Hiedata Column(3)\$ To \$vLastPrice\$
47 Image: Solution SPEdiata Column(S) To SyChangeh/Percent\$ 48 Message Box: "SyNameS: SyLastPice\$, "Synames: SyLastPice\$, "SyChangeh/Percent\$" 48 Execute SQL Statement: INSERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME_LAST_PRICE, CHANGE_CHANGE_PERCENT, DATE_ADDED)VALUES(SyName\$', "SyChange\$', "SyChange\$', "SyChangeh/Percent\$', SYSDATE)." Session: "RPA-DB' 50 Image: SyLastPice\$, "SyChange\$," Nonace SyChangeb/Percent\$'' 51 Comment: Please enter the conditional commands here. 52 Send Email: Subject "INS Project" 53 End If 54 Find Loop 55 Disconneet from database Session: "RPA-DB' 56 End If 57 A 58 End Emor Handling	46	5	Variable Operation: \$Filedata Column(4)\$ To \$vChange\$
48 ₩ Message Box: "SvName\$', SvLastPice\$, Change: SvChange: SvCha	47	<u>S</u>	Variable Operation: \$Filedata Column(5)\$ To \$vChangeInPercent\$
49 Execute SQL Statement: INSERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME, LAST_PRICE, CHANGE, CHANGE, PERCENT, DATE_ADDED)VALUES(\$vName\$; \$vLastPrice\$', \$vChange\$', \$vCh	48		Message Box: "\$vName\$: \$vLastPrice\$, Change:\$vChange\$, % Change: \$vChangeInPercent\$"
50 III If SvNameS Equal To (+) "Nasdaq" Then 1 Comment: Rease enter the conditional commands here. 2 Send Email: Subject "MS Project" 31 Image:	49		Execute SQL Statement: 'INSERT INTO RPA_TEST (NAME, LAST_PRICE, CHANGE, CHANGE_PERCENT, DATE_ADDED)VALUES('\$vName\$', '\$vLastPrice\$', '\$vChange\$', '
31 Comment: Please enter the conditional commands here. 32 Send Email: Subject "MS Project" 34 Send Email: Subject "MS Project" 34 Send Email: Subject "MS Project" 35 End If 36 Send Email: Subject "MS Project" 37 A 48 Send Email: Subject "MS Project" 37 A 49 End If	50	IF	If \$vName\$ Equal To (=) "Nasdaq" Then
52 Send Email: Subject "MS Project" 53 End If 54 End Lop 56 Disconnect from database Session: 'RPA-DB' 56 End If 57 End Emor Handling	51		Comment: Please enter the conditional commands here.
33 End IF 44 Second from database Session.'RPA-DB' 56 Second from database Session.'RPA-DB' 57 A End Error Handling	52	\times	Send Email: Subject "MS Project"
54 Send Loop 55 Disconnect from database Session: 'RPA-DB' 56 Send If 57 End Error Handling	53	X	End If
Seconnect from database Session: 'RPA-DB' S6 End if S7 A End Enor Handling	54	N.	Endloop
56 N End If 57 ▲ End Emor Handling	55	. 5	Disconnect from database Session 'RPA-DR'
57 A End Error Handling	56	X	End #
- an unit including	57		End Error Handlina
		-	

APPENDIX B

Automation Anywhere code for collecting and emailing job search results from Monster.com.



APPENDIX C

Automation Anywhere code for automating processes on Mercy.edu.

1	A	Begin Error Handling; Action; Continue; Options: Log to File, Variable Assignment, Task Status: Fail
2		Launch Website "https://www.mercy.edu/degrees.programs/ms-cybersecurity"
3	Θ	Wait for Window to Open ("Cybersecurity Mercy College - Internet Explorer") (Wait up to 5 seconds - For Window to Open)
4	IF	if Window Exists ("Cybersecurity Mercy College - Internet Explorer") Then
2	-0	Maximize Window: "Cybersecurity Mercy College - Internet Explorer"
7		ero r Kauterios: (CTPL DOWNINGTEL HELis "Cohomo utilu Marcu Callons - Istante Svalove" utilu delau: 50 me
8	77	Negsiones, principornic or principolesecurity (mercy coneger = internet cupicier miniferay, 30 ms
9	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	Object Clavina: Clavi
10	<u>x</u>	Delay: (5 sec)
11	<u></u>	Object Cloning: Get Property 'HTML InnerText' of ListView "" from window 'Cybersecurity Mercy College - Internet Explorer'; Assign to variable "\$Clipboard\$"; Source: Window: Play Type:Object
12	-	Message Box: "\$Clipboard\$"
13	*	String Operation: Split "\$Clipboard\$" with delimiter "IASP" and assign output to \$my-list-variable\$
14	Ξ.	Start Loop "List Variable \$my-list-variable\$"
15	IF	If \$my-list-variable\$ Not Equal To (⇔) "" Then
16	x	Message Box: "IASP\$my-list-variable\$"
19	x	End I
19	70	Circ Loop PGP: Forward Eles using Pasenbrase: Source: "\$A&AnglinationPath\$V&tomation Anwebere/Mr Dons/MS: Project/encount tot".
20	π٥	PGP: Decrypt field using Passphrase: Source: "SAAAoolicationPath's Automation Anwhere \Wr. Docs \WS. Project \encrypt at the "calination" (SAAoolicationPath's Automation Anwhere \Wr. Docs \WS. Project \encrypt at the and "calination and "standard at the analysis of the
21		Read From Text File: "\$AAApplicationPath\$\Automation Anywhere\My Docs\MS_Project\encrypt txt" Deliniter: NewLine' Header: No' Trim Leading Space: "No'' Trim Trailing Space: "No'' Session: Default'
22	5	Start Loop "Each row in a CSV/Text file of Session: Default"
23	IF	if \$Counter\$ Equal To (=) "1" Then
24	\$	Variable Operation: \$Filedata Column(1)\$ To \$vUsemame\$
25	EI	Else if \$Counter\$ Equal To (=) "2" Then
26	3	Variable Operation: SFiledata Column(1)\$ To \$VPassword\$
27	x	that is a second s
20	1	En Loop De las Ries "Addanies instructure de la constructure de la constructure de la constructure de la constructure de
30	88	Delete Fries an Anapplication in an single with some with Marcola in a project en city with an
31	77	oljeu dominje, duk on blik – in window cybersediny i mercy college - internet Explorer, duk Type, duk, source, window, riay type, objeu Dolauri (5 co.)
32	- 22	ueigy, () seu) Obiod (Dening: Set Tast of Tast Bay "unor id" in window "Blackbaard Laam. Istemat Evolume" (Jakar "Automate": Sauras (Window: Blau Tuno: Obiost
33	88	Object Coming, Set Text of TextBox User_ju in window blackboard Learn* internet Explores' Values vousenanies , source: Vindoux; hay type: Object
34	88	Object Country, Set Text of TextBox passing in window blackboard cean in Internet Explorer Value
25	77	oljeu dominje diuk om rusirbation rugin in window biakkodalo Lean - internet Explorer, kick type, kick, source, window, nay type, objekt Dolavit (4 cos)
36	- 22	orige, e seu) Obiget (name: Click On Liele "" in window Walcome Estict - Diadebased Laser, Internet Evaluere' Click Tune: Click: Source: Window: Play Tune: Click
37	77	Disku cloning, click of birk in window Welcone, rajec blackboard beart internet Explorer, click type, click, source, window, ray type, object
38	- <u>.</u>	uenay, (z. sec.) Obiast (Danina: Oliak On Link "" in window "Mu Courses – Blackhoard Laam, Internet Evaluere". Click Tune: Oliak Source: Window: Play Tune: Obiast
30	77	Diget closing, click of bitk in window my coulses blackboard beart internet Explorer, click type, click, source, window, risy type, object
40	<u></u>	Delay (E. Sec.) Obiad Charlon Click On Link "" in window "Haman and a 201010 Carlon JACE 200.DI & (CDN 0204 201010). Internet Evaland" Click Type: Click: Source: Mindow: Play Type: Obiant
41	77	Delau doming, click of bitk in window holleyage zoro to sping indireduced (cirredze4.2010.0) internet Explorer, click Type, click, double, window, hay type, object Delau (2006)
42	<u></u>	Delay (E. Sec) Obiad (Daning: Click On Link "" in window "Course Massage = 201910 Coring (ASP-2000) & (CDN) - , Internet Evaluary" (Click Tune: Click: Source: Window: Play Tune: Obiant
43	37	Delau doming, click on blik in window coulde messages zororo sping indirout-bok (criter internet Explorer, click type, click, double, trindow, hay type, object Delau (20 en)
44	77	onar, e seo Dhiart (Davian: Clink On PushButton "to h" in window "Compose Massane - 201910 Soring (ASP-600-D) & (CRN, Internet Evalurer': Clink Tune: Clink: Source: Window: Play Tune: Ohiart
45	5	
46	77	Down - Le seon Ohier (Lowing - Select Item By Text "Fatiet Knei" of ListNew "to se" in window Compose Messane - 201910 Spring IdSP-S00.D1 & (CRN , Internet Evoloper'- Spring- Window: Play Type - Ohiert
47	<u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u><u></u></u>	Delaur (1 an)
48	77	Doing (1900) Ohiert Charing Click On Granhies "" in window 'Compose Message – 201910 Spring IASP-600-DI & (CRN Internet Evplorer': Click Tune: Click: Spring: Window: Play Tune: Chiert
49	ज	Delaur (1 a.e.)
50	22	Diana (1900) Ohiart (Nanion: Set Tavt of TavtBry "subject t" in window "Compose Message – 201910 Spring IASP-600.DI A (CRN
51	ন্থ	Delau Contractor Textor Textor Subject, in minor Complet Heading - 2010 to oping not ded bit (entrum internet Expense, value, cycolecoding text, odarec, minor, no type, object
52	ĀĀ	Object Cloning: Click On Link "" in window 'Compose Message - 201910 Spring IASP-600-DI A (CRN Internet Explorer', Click Type: Click: Spurce: Window: Play Type: Object
53	স	
54	큧	Delay(1sec)
55	-5	Start Loon "List Variable Smv-list-variableS"
56	IF	If \$mv-list-variable\$ Not Equal To (<>)"" Then
57	M	Object Cloning: Set Text of TextBox "htmlSource" in window 'HTML code view - Internet Explorer': Value: "drr>\$mv-list-variable\$": Source: Window: Plav Type: Object
58	X	End f
59	5	End Loop
60	<u>.</u>	Object Cloning: Click On PushButton "insert" in window 'HTML code view - Internet Explorer'; Click Type: Click: Source: Window; Play Type: Object
61	7	Delay: (3 sec)
62	Ā	Object Cloning: Click On PushButton "bottom_Submit" in window 'Compose Message - 201910 Spring IASP-600-DLA (CRN Internet Explorer': Click Type: Click: Source: Window: Play Type: Object
63	A	End Error Handling
	_	

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Fatjet Kosi

Candidate for the Degree of

Master of Science

Thesis: ROBOTIC PROCESS AUTOMATION (RPA) AND SECURITY

Major Field: Cybersecurity

Biographical:

Personal Data:

Education: Bachelor of Science, Computer Information Systems (2013)

Completed the requirements for the Master of Science in Cybersecurity at Mercy College

in Dobbs Ferry, NY in May 2019.

ADVISER'S APPROVAL: Dr. John Yoon